SENATE FI NANCE COW TTEE
February 25, 2015
9:10 a. m

9:10: 10 AM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Kelly called the Senate Finance Commttee neeting
to order at 9:10 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Anna MacKi nnon, Co-Chair
Senator Pete Kelly, Co-Chair

Senat or Peter M cciche, Vice-Chair
Senat or M ke Dunl eavy

Senat or Lyman Hof f man

Senat or Donny d son

VEMBERS ABSENT

Senator dick Bishop

ALSO PRESENT

Ron Tayl or, Conmm ssioner, Departnent of Corrections; Renond
Hender son, Deputy Conm ssioner, Departrment of Corrections;
Sam Cotten, Conm ssioner, Departnment of Fish and Gane;
Kevin Brooks, Deputy Conm ssioner, Departnent of Fish and
Gane; Kelly Howell, Director, Division of Admnistrative
Ser vi ces, Departnment of Public Safety; Gary Fol ger,
Comm ssi oner, Departnent of Public Safety.

SUMVARY
SB 27 APPROP: OPERATI NG BUDGET/ LOANS/ FUNDS

SB 27 was was HEARD and HELD in commttee for
further consideration.

FY 16 BUDGET OVERVI EWE:
DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTI ONS

DEPARTMENT OF FI SH and GAME
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLI C SAFETY



#sb27
SENATE BILL NO. 27

"An Act neking appropriations for the operating and
| oan program expenses of state governnment and for
certain pr ogr ans, capitalizing funds, maki ng
reappropriations, and nmaking appropriations under art.
| X, sec. 17(c), Constitution of the State of Al aska,
from the «constitutional budget reserve fund; and
providing for an effective date."

9:11: 32 AM

AOVERVI EW FY 16 DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTI ONS

9:12: 03 AM

RON  TAYLOR, COW SSI ONER, DEPARTMENT OF  CORRECTI ONS,
presented Slide 2, "M ssion":

The Al aska Departnent of Corrections enhances the
safety  of our conmuni ties. W provide secure
confinenent, reformative prograns, and a process of
supervi sed community reintegration

Comm ssi oner Tayl or joked that the departnent was good at
secure confinenent. He added that the departnent had been
working diligently at helping people be successful at
comunity reintegration.

9:12:48 AM

REMOND  HENDERSON, DEPUTY COW SSI ONER, DEPARTMENT  OF
CORRECTIONS, referred to Slide 2, "Corrections Conparison -
FY2015 Managenent Plan to FY2016 Work In Progress"”, which
reflected the adjustnents that were nade between the FY 15
managenment plan and the Wrk In Progress budget submtted
by the governor. He shared that the departnment had taken an
overall 6 percent reduction between FY2015 and the anended
budget. He made note of the individual reductions, pointing
out that the first was the Physical Health Care/PFD Fund
Change, the reduced G- would be replaced with PFD crim na

funds and totaled approximately $9.5 mllion. He explained
that under AS 43.23.005(d), individuals were not eligible
for a permanent fund dividend if they had Dbeen

incarcerated, convicted of a felony, or convicted of a
m sdeneanor with a prior history of a felony. He continued

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 2 02/ 25/ 15 9:10 A M



that the slide reflected and increase in the vacancy
factor; historically, throughout the institutions there had
been carried a zero percent vacancy factor, a 2 percent
vacancy factor had been allocated throughout each conponent
in the institutions, totaling roughly $3 mllion. He
pointed to the next deduction, which was a $601.2 nillion
reduction in the Fairbanks Comrunity Residential Center. He
said that the contract that the departnent had with the
center had been reduced by 20 beds to nore appropriately
reflect actual usage. He spoke to the reduction in regional
and comunity jail contracts, which had been reduced to the
FY 14 level of $283.2 mllion, removing the CPlI and the
geographi cal increase that had been received in FY 15.

9:15: 59 AM

Co-Chair Kelly asked whether the residential center was
Nort hstar Center in Fairbanks.

M. Henderson replied in the affirmative.

9:16: 09 AM

M. Henderson stated that the bottom of Slide 2 listed the
al I ocation from the Governor's Budget in secure
confinenent, supervised release, and reformative prograns.
The slide reflected a 3.8 percent reduction in UG

9:16:42 AM

M. Henderson noved to Slide 3, which noved from the Wrk
In Progress budget to the FY2016 CGovernor's Budget, prior
to anendnents. He said that the first reduction was for
$316,000 and would reduce excess authority that the
departnment had in agency receipts. The next reduction was
$28.4 mllion and would elimnate CIP receipts. The
department no |onger had capital dollars in the budget for
pri son expansi on.

9:17:22 AM

Senator Dunleavy asked about the 3.8 percent reduction
reflected at the bottom of Slide 2.

M . Henderson responded that the 3.8 reduction was in the

UG-, the $11,423.0, divided by the beginning balance was
equal to 3.8 percent.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 3 02/ 25/ 15 9:10 A M



Senator Dunleavy clarified that the overall reduction was
0.5 percent, as reflected at the bottom of the slide.

M . Henderson replied yes.

9:18: 27 AM

M. Henderson returned to Slide 3. He said that the $339.9
reduction in GF program receipts wuld nore accurately
reflect what was actually being collected. He identified
the GF reduction for Medicaid expansion; citing a
nati onwi de study that estinated that 80 to 90 percent of
the inmates within the institutions would be eligible for
Medi caid; the departnment had conducted research using its
own facility nunbers and discovered the possible savings
t hr ough the expansi on.

9:20:47 AM
AT EASE

9:21:32 AM
RECONVENED

9:21:36 AM

Senat or Dunl eavy surnmised that the slide worked under the
assunption that the state would be choosing Medicaid
expansi on.

M . Henderson responded in the affirmative.

Senator Dunl eavy asked whether there would be [|egislation
that woul d expl ain the whol e concept of Medicaid expansion.

M. Henderson replied that the Departnent of Health and
Social Services (DHSS) would offer a broad perspective on
the entire Medicaid expansion during that departnent's
budget overvi ew.

9:22:16 AM

Senator Hoffman asked whether the departnent anticipated
the expansion to be inplenented on July 1, 2015, or a later
dat e.

M. Henderson he said that the nunbers on the slide spoke
to what the department projected over the course of one

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 4 02/ 25/ 15 9:10 A M



year. He deferred further explanation to DHSS. He did not
bel i eve that the savings would begin on July 1, 2015.

Senator Hoffman surmsed that if the expansion began in
January of 2016, half of the projected savings could be
expect ed.

M . Henderson understood that even if the expansion did not
begin on July, 1, 2015, the departnment had the ability to
bill for services 90 days retrograde once the expansion
t ook effect.

9:23: 37 AM

Co- Chair MacKi nnon understood that there had been a |ega
chal | enge concerning the departnment billing Medicaid. She
felt that, beyond the Medicaid expansion discussion there
was the issue of whether DOC could even bill, and recoup
any noney from Medicaid. She requested a |egal opinion on
the matter.

M. Henderson understood that it had not been the federa

regul ations or Alaska Statutes that had been preventing DOC
from billing Medicaid, rather it was the regulations of
DHSS. He relayed that DOC had been working with DHSS and
the Departnment of Law (DOL) in order to change the
regulations to enable DOC to becone eligible for the
Medi caid expansion. He noted that regulations had been
drafted but had not yet been put out for public comment. He
offered to provide further information on the issue.

9:25:19 AM

Co- Chai r Kelly queried whether the departnent any
alternative plan if the state failed to expand Medicaid. He
asked whether a supplenental request would be made by the
depart ment.

M. Henderson replied that if the departnent took the
reduction, and the state failed to expand Medicaid, a
suppl ement al request would be imm nent.

9:25: 54 AM

M. Henderson continued to the next itemon Slide 3, which
he characterized as the nost difficult reduction in the
budget: Regional & Conmmunity Jail Contracts. He said that

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 5 02/ 25/ 15 9:10 A M



the roughly 10.3 mllion reduction was not intended to
close comunity jails, but to elimnate contracts. He
opi ned that what had been discovered was that the reduction
woul d cause major issues with conmunity jails. He said that
all of the contracts were under scrutiny and that the funds
had been intended to fund a portion of the operations of
those jails. He stated that the funding had been used to
pay for up to 20 percent of police officers and
di spatchers, as well as wutilities and clothing for the
facilities. He expl ai ned t hat t he depart nment had
di scovered, while intending to reduce the portion that it
was providing to operate the jails, that the reduction had
caused a significant strain on the comunities. He reveal ed
that this was what had led to the Governor's Amendnent to
put $7 mllion back into the budget to address conmunity
contracts. He stressed that the departnent had |ooked at
sinply closing institutions, but that closing institutions
was not easy.

9:28: 29 AM

Co-Chair Kelly requested a brief overview of conmunity
jails and how t hey oper at ed.

Conmi ssioner Taylor said that comunity jails were where
people were held at the point of arrest; |Ilocal police
departnments and conmunities had contracts wth the
departnment for people arrested for state crines. He
furthered that people were brought into custody and held
for up to 30 days, depending on the location, and then
transferred to one of the larger institutions. He disclosed
that half of the beds were underutilized and there were a
nunber of communities outside of the comunity jails
structure that the Departnent of Public Safety (DPS) used
as energency guard services.

9:30: 00 AM

Senator Hoffman felt that the problem was with the cost
shift; the question was what happened when people were

arrested and could not be detained in a community jail. He
related that Kotzebue had closed their comunity jail,
which led to an increase in the overall state budget

t hrough DPS because troopers had to transport individuals
back and forth fromcity to city. He added that nenbers of
the courts had required travel as well, in order to ensure
due process for offenders. He concluded that cuts in the

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 6 02/ 25/ 15 9:10 A M



DOC budget would often beconme additions to the DPS budget.
He reiterated that the judicial system needed to be able to
represent in all communities.

9:32:16 AM

M. Henderson returned to Slide 3. He pointed out to the
conmittee the $1 nillion increase, which had been nade
necessary because the 24 hour utility conponent funding for
fuel trigger had been elimnated. He asserted that there
had not been a reduction in community jails to fund the
line item although it was listed as a Regional & Conmunity
transfer to 24-hr. Uility Conponent. He explained that the
listing was a technical way of showi ng what had happened
wi t hout the allowance of increnents.

9:32: 59 AM

Senator O son contended that energy costs were higher for
community jails in rural areas. He wondered how nmuch of the
$1 million was for the heating of community jails.

M. Henderson replied that he did not know.

9:33:57 AM

Senat or Dunl eavy asked whether the departnment had di scussed
the idea of a 25 percent overall reduction in the DOC
budget within the next three years.

Comm ssi oner Taylor responded that it had been discussed.
He lanented that a 25 percent overall reduction in the
departnment would nost likely result in the closing of
institutions and the shipnent of inmates out-of-state.

9:34:52 AM

Co-Chair Kelly requested a projected tineline that could
pl ot when the state would reach capacity and need to either
build a new facility or begin shipping inmtes out-of-
st at e.

Comm ssi oner Taylor responded that the projected tineline
was 2016-2017. He opined that 128 beds had been taken
offline at Point MacKenzie. He said that the departnent was
wor king toward shifting some mninmum security inmates from
the institutions and into halfway houses and electronic

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 7 02/ 25/ 15 9:10 A M



nmonitoring situations. He thought that by the next
| egi sl ative session the departnment would be able to report
back wth solid nunbers. He assuned that |egislative
recommendati ons woul d inpact how the departnent served its
popul ati on.

9:36:13 AM

Senat or Hof fman asked which facility was the nost
overcrowded and what the departnment was doing to rectify
any issues of overcrowding at facilities.

Comm ssioner Taylor said that he would need to check the
nmost recent counts sheet and get back to the commttee with
t he information.

Senator Hoffman confirnmed that the state's nost crowded
facility was the Yukon Kuskokwi m Correctional Facility in
Bethel. He shared that he had toured the facility with the
previ ous conm ssi oner and had been told that t he
overcrowmding would be rectified with the Goose Creek
Correctional Facility. He asserted that Goose Creek was
online and the problem had still not been rectified. He
benmpaned that Goose Creek had not been the "magic bullet”
t hat many people had thought that it would be.

9:37:42 AM

Vice-Chair Mcciche suggested that the daily cost for
institutions was less than half at the comunity jail
| evel .

M . Henderson responded in the affirmative.

Vice-Chair Mcciche surmsed that the daily cost of out-of-
state institutions was 30 percent less than in-state.

M . Henderson replied that that was correct.

Vice-Chair Mcciche asked whether an overall evaluation of
the cost efficiency of running the state's correctional
system could be nade available. He understood that there
had been support in the past to bring hone Alaskan's that
were incarcerated out-of-state, but that it was an
expensive proposition. He presunmed that a 25 percent
reduction in the departnent's budget would nake the
community jails and in-state institutions an wunattractive
expense.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 8 02/ 25/ 15 9:10 A M



9:39: 23 AM

M. Henderson returned to Slide 3 to explain that the $1.5
mllion reduction in the center in Palner was the first of
several steps required to close an institution. He noted
that if DOC was going to achieve a 25 percent reduction in
4 years as previously nentioned, it would result in
multiple facilities being closed.

9:40: 59 AM

Co-Chair Kelly queried the cost of switching sone innates
to el ectronic nonitoring.

Comm ssioner Taylor estinmated that the daily cost of
el ectronic nonitoring was approximately $24 to $25 per day.
This service was contracted out and was not a capital
expendi t ure.

9:41: 24 AM

Co- Chair MacKi nnon asserted that a huge cost driver in the
DOC budget was | abor.

Comm ssi oner Taylor answered in the affirmative.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon asked for a conparison of |abor costs
in-state to | abor costs out-of-state.

Comm ssioner Taylor replied that such a conparison had
never been done.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon requested the conparison. She said that
there had to be a reason that out-of-state facilities could
offer incarceration at |ower cost value that nade it
beneficial for Al aska to ship people out of state.

Comm ssioner Taylor contended that the departnent was
dealing wth ol der facilities that required costly
mai nt enance and that out-of-state-facilities enjoyed newer
t echnol ogi es unavailable to in-state facilities.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon said that she hoped for a percentage
conpari son nunber

9:43:16 AM

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 9 02/ 25/ 15 9:10 A M



Vice-Chair Mcciche spoke to Slide 11. He asked whether it
had been a policy call by the legislature to drive toward
the nost expansive option, or had the decision been
depart ment al .

Comm ssioner Taylor replied that the departnment did not
have the ability to nake policy decisions; the decision had
been made through a conbination of the |egislature and the
governor's office.

9:44: 04 AM

Co-Chair Kelly noted that it had been a legislative issue
in the 1990's.

Vice-Chair Mcciche lanmented that there was a 400 percent
difference in cost between out-of-state incarceration and
in-state conmunity jails. He encouraged the departnment to
ook into options that would nmake incarceration costs
manageable into the future. He felt that the |egislature
coul d of fer suggestions.

Co-Chair Kelly agreed. He suggested that |owrisk prisoners
shoul d be put on el ectronic nonitoring.

Comm ssioner Taylor stated that DOC did have the ability
for electronic nonitoring; however, it wuld nean an
increased risk to the public. He warned that reentry
management required a delicate bal ance.

9:46: 10 AM

Senator O son recognized that the issue of privatization of
correctional facilities was contentious. He shared that the
desire to bring down the recidivism rate in Al aska had
driven policy decisions in the past concerning in-state
incarceration. He believed that it would be short-sighted
to ignore that past work. He spoke of the conparison
between comunity jails and the cost of in-state
incarceration. He stated that two different functions were
at work; community jails were intended to hold people
tenporarily until the next step in the legal process, a
holding facility would be cheaper to run day-by-day, but
rural areas needed comunity jails to use as tenporary
holing cells to protect their residents. He feared for the
safety of rural communities that |acked community jails.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 10 02/ 25/ 15 9:10 A M



Senator dson spoke if the $7 mllion that had been
reinstated in the budget, and wondered whether his district
woul d benefit from it. He said that communities in his
district were on hold with devel oping their budgets for the
next year because they did not know whether they were going
to receive the necessary supplenental funding to continue
to stay open.

9: 50: 50 AM

Comm ssioner Taylor replied that the departnment had
exanm ned the FY 11 nunbers with the understanding of what
the rural communities were facing. He explained that the FY
11 budget nunbers were the baseline for what was awarded to
the comunities; $6.4 mllion. He stated that those
communi ties woul d receive the funding.

9:51: 38 AM

Co-Chair Kelly hoped that the departnment could cone before
the commttee again in the future.

9:52: 50 AM
AT EASE

9:54: 49 AM
RECONVENED

"OVERVI EW FY 16 DEPARTMENT OF FI SH and GAME

9: 55: 24 AM

SAM COTTEN, COW SSI ONER, DEPARTMENT OF FISH AND GAME,
comment ed t hat t he depart nment faced chal | engi ng
relationships with several different federal agencies whose
m ssion statements differed from that of the Departnent of
Fish and Gane (DF&5. He shared that DF&G s biggest
challenge was the ability to have adequate nmanagenent
information through stock assessment and research in order
to allow the public access to the resources. He felt that
the departnent benefited through their ability to raise
funds through user fees. He believed that a l|lot of wuser
groups were realizing and accepting responsibility that
pay-as-you-go might be sonmething that would be common in
the future.

9: 56: 58 AM

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 11 02/ 25/ 15 9:10 A M



Senat or Dunl eavy suggested the departnent begin their
presentation on Slide 6.

9:57:13 AM

KEVI N BROOKS, DEPUTY COW SSI ONER, DEPARTMENT OF FI SH AND
GAME, referred to Slide 6, "FY2016 Budget By Division
($214,975.5)". He pointed out to the conmittee the three
| argest managenent divisions illustrated on the slide:
Commercial Fisheries, WIldlife Conservation, and Sport
Fi sheries, constituted 80 percent of total funding. He said
that smaller divisions and entities made up the renaining
budget balance. He turned to Slide 7, "FY2016 Budget By
Funding Source (%$214,975.5)". He stated that G- dollars
constituted $71,245.6 mllion (40 percent), federal funds
were $66.853.9 (30 percent), and Fish and Gane funds
derived from hunting and fishing |icenses totaled $24,287.7
(11 percent).

9:58: 29 AM

Senat or Dunl eavy queried the $109.7 mllion for IAGI| Haz
refl ected on the slide.

M. Brooks replied that the funds were a small inner-agency
agreenent with the Departnent of Environmental Conservation
(DEC), and came in through the Division of Habitat.

Senat or Dunl eavy asked whether the funds cane out of the
Spill Prevention and Response (SPAR) budget.

M. Brooks replied in the affirmative.

9:59: 04 AM

M. Brooks noved to Slide 8, "FY2016 Budgeted Positions".
He explained that DF&G had a very seasonal workforce; 922
full-time positions, 1683 total positions. He stated that
the departnent doubled in size during the busy field
season, and the majority of the positions resided in the
af orenenti oned three | arge nmanagenent divi sions.

9:59: 33 AM

M. Brooks presented Slide 9, "FY2016 Operating Budget by
Division," noting the negotiated salary increases had grown
the budget by $2.7 mllion overall and were a mxture of

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 12 02/ 25/ 15 9:10 A M



funding sources, half of which was UG-. He highlighted the
smal | reduction in healthcare costs and the $810 thousand
UGF reduction for three tenporary increnents that had been
added in previous years and were scheduled to roll off at
the end of 2015; $300 thousand of which was in sport
fisheries, and $510 thousand in conmercial fisheries.

10: 00: 44 AM

Senat or Dunl eavy understood there was an increase over the
previ ous year's budget.

M. Brooks replied that the increase was only in the
adj ust ed base.

10: 00: 53 AM

Senator Hoffman asked why the health insurance rate
reductions were not proportionate to the anmount of noney
that the departnent received in general, federal and fish
and gane funds. He asked about the increases in contracts;
over 50 percent of the increases were from general funds,
but general funds was only one-third of the charted funding
sour ces.

M. Brooks explained that the adjustnents were tied to the
detail ed budget put out by the Ofice of Mnagenent and
Budget (OVB) and that each specific position control nunber
(PCN) had a funding source ratio.

10: 02: 18 AM

M. Brooks noved to Slide 10, which took the nunbers from
the previous slide and adjusted them to reflect the
governor's endorsed budget. He pointed out snmall reductions
in comrercial and sport fisheries, and in the smaller
di vi si ons of adm ni strative servi ces, habi t at , and
subsi stence research. He summarized that there was
approximately $7.3 mllion in UG- reductions and sone
proposals to off-set wth available revenue from the
Commercial Fisheries Entry Conmssion, as well as sone
federal receipts.

10: 03: 15 AM

M. Brooks presented slide 11, "Hi ghlights in Operating
Budget ":

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 13 02/ 25/ 15 9:10 A M



[$7.3 mllion UG reduction from Adj usted Base

[ORevenue O fsets
*$3 mllion in CFEC Receipts (DG&F) in Division of
Commerci al Fisheries
*$1.2 mllion in federal Pittnman-Robertson funds
in Division of WIldlife Conservation

[(ICuts to Divisions - $1.9 mllion

CEl i m nate Tenporary |ncrenents
eCommercial Fisheries - $1 million
*Sport Fish - $238.5

(31 mllion increase in federal Pi t t man- Robert son
funds in Division of WIldlife Conservati on

[ORestructure Budget Conponent s for Conmmer ci al
Fi sheries
*Transfer Special Projects funding to Regional
and St at ewi de Conponents

10: 06: 10 AM

Co- Chair MacKinnon referred to the Pittman-Robertson fund
She offered that when contractual agreements were signed on
grant funding lines there was usually a clause that stated
that federal dollars could not be supplenented for noney
that was already being spent elsewhere. She wondered how
the fund allowed for current G- spending to be off-set with
federal dollars.

M. Brooks replied that the Division of Wildlife
Conservation was just under $50 million, and over the years
$600 to $700 nmillion of GF dollars had been added in to the
budget, primarily for intensive managenent and endangered
species work; things that did not fit squarely into the
eligibility for federal funding. He said that the proposa
would not conpromise the contracts in place with the
federal governnent, and was not an inappropriate use of the
funds, but was an aggressive use of the federal funds for
every eligible cost that they could be used for.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon asked whether federal funds were being
suppl ant ed.

M. Brooks replied no.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 14 02/ 25/ 15 9:10 A M



10: 08: 30 AM

M. Brooks presented Slide 12, "FY2016 Capital Projects
Request ":

Projects and Initiatives

W Ildlife Managenent , Resear ch and Hunt i ng
Access: $11,250.0 Federal, $500.0 GFM

Recurring Capital Projects

OSport Fish Recreational Boating Access: $2,250.0
Federal , $750.0 GF

[OShooting Range Deferred Maintenance: $375.0
Federal , $125.0 F&GF

10: 09: 18 AM

Senator Dunleavy referred to Slide 12. He asked which of
the tree projects could wait a year w thout being funded.

M. Brooks explained that the departnent had experience a
| arge increase in the Pittman-Robertson funds, as reflected
in Slide 11. He said that the funds were derived from an
excise tax on guns and anmunition at the national |evel
and were allocated to all 50 states based on a formula. The
state of Al aska received a maxi num allocation of 5 percent,
whi ch the departnent was challenged to match 1 state dollar
to 3 federal dollars. He said that the DF&G funds were not
keeping up and there was a danger of funds reverting in
Septenber 2016 if the departnent could not obligate the
funds. He noted that obligation on the federal side was not
an encunbrance, but an obligation occurred when a viable
project was approved by the federal governnment for grant
funding. The grant was not a block grant; the departnent
had to put proposals on the table to do specific things
with match funds, and then await approval. He relayed that
the match for the capital project would be $3.5 mllion,
DF&G was requesting $500 thousand in general fund match in
consideration of the state's fiscal climate, which had put
the division in the position of having to seek out
fi nanci al partners.

10: 12: 06 AM

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 15 02/ 25/ 15 9:10 A M



Senat or Dunleavy asked if the noney would be lost if it
were not used in FY 16.

M. Brooks responded that the departnent needed the funds
in order to obligate.

Senat or Dunl eavy asked which of the alternatives in 1 - 7,
presented in the January 2015 Commercial Fisheries Entry
Comm ssi on Review did t he depart nment support for
i npl enentation, and what financial inpact would it have on
this and future budgets.

Comm ssioner Cotten comented that the departnent was
confident that there were efficiencies that could be found.
He noted that there were inportant functions perforned by
the conmm ssion that needed to conti nue.

Senat or Dunl eavy understood that the size of the commi ssion
woul d be reduced.

Comm ssioner Cotton replied in the affirmative.

10: 14: 33 AM

Senator Dunl eavy asked how many dollars were included in
the budget to perform fish and wildlife studies for the
Susi t na- Want ana dam

M. Brooks responded that, currently, no dollars were
included for FY 16. He said that DF&G had worked with the
Al aska Energy Authority (AEA) for FY 14 and FY 15 fundi ng,
and expected to tie up the projects as neatly as possible.

10: 17: 30 AM

Senator Dunl eavy referenced Page 11 of the anended budget.
He asked where the departnent would make cuts if the
| egislature were to reduce the 13.4 percent of G funding
for admnistration and support accounting to 10 percent,
approxi mately $2.890, 500.

M. Brooks stated that there were 5 conponents within the
appropriation: the comm ssioner's office and admi nistrative
services, the boards section, subsistence division, and
$2.5 mllion in lease costs. He said that $2.8 nillion
woul d equate to a 25 percent cut, which the departnent had
pl anned to work toward over the next three years, not in

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 16 02/ 25/ 15 9:10 A M



one year. He relayed that the cuts would be spread over the
5 conponents, but that the $2.5 mllion for the |eases was
a fixed cost.

10: 19: 53 AM

Senator Dunl eavy stated that sport fisheries were schedul ed
for a 10.1 percent reduction, while comrercial fisheries
woul d experience a 3.75 percent reduction. He asked what
prograns woul d be enhanced, and reduced, in each division
if the two conponents were to be equally cut.

M. Brooks replied the commercial fisheries budget was
approximately $70 mllion, with roughly $44 mllion G
sport fisheries was a $50 million budget, with $6 mllion
GF. He said that commercial fishing was hugely dependent
upon UGF dollars. He stated that the departnent had taken
sport fisheries from $7 nmllion to $6.3 mllion, a 10
percent reduction between FY 15 and FY 16. He related that
the commercial fisheries budget had taken $2.3 nmillion in
real cuts to actual projects, a 10 percent reduction in
t hat budget would equate to $4.4 nmillion in projects across
the state that would be shut down. He asserted that cheaper
counting nmethods would result in less precise data which
would lead to nore conservative managenent and a |oss of
fishing opportunity.

Senat or Dunl eavy asked whet her the departnent had
identified any in-house functions that could be privatized.
He asked whether a request for interest on any of the
functions of the departnent had been issued.

M. Brooks thought that the departnment had never done a
request for interest on privatizing any departnenta
functions. He shared that the departnent had a |ong history
of partnerships, and cited several hatcheries that used to
be under the departnment and were now run by privately non-
profits. He furthered that the Anchorage Shooting Range
covered its own costs, but the Fairbanks and Juneau ranges
were not lucrative, which nade privatization a challenge.
He stated that the funding for the Round Island Sanctuary
had been elimnated in the FY 15 budget and the departnent
was searching for private sector funding for the line item
He added that the departnent hoped to map out the next 3
budget years during an upcomng |eadership retreat
schedul ed in May 2015.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 17 02/ 25/ 15 9:10 A M



10: 22: 15 AM

Senator Hoffman asserted that the departnment significantly
and directly affected the lives of Al askan's. He renmarked
that the state spent a great deal on the DF& and he
believed that the departnent did a good job putting those
dollars to work. He asserted that the departnent should
continue to look to streamine its actions and be as
efficient as possible, but that the |egislature should be
cognizant of services that the departnment successfully
delivered. He warned that the commttee should be aware of
the jobs that the departnment nmade avail abl e for Al askans.

10: 24: 59 AM

Co-Chair MacKi nnon asked where hatcheries were located in
t he state.

Comm ssioner Cotten said that the two state run hatcheries
were the Ruth Barnett Hatchery in Fairbanks, and the Jack
Her nandez Hatchery i n Anchorage.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon asked how many fish were produced in
each of the hatcheries.

M. Brooks said that he would get back to the conmttee
wi th those nunbers.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon understood that the state had invested a
| ot of noney in the Fairbanks hatchery and wondered whet her
it was operational.
Co-Chair Kelly ‘interjected that he had seen tens of
thousands of fish during a sumer 2014 visit to the
Fai r banks hat chery.

Co-Chair MacKinnon requested an analysis and financial
breakdown of the state's investnent in the hatchery.

M. Brooks agreed to provide the information.

10: 26: 28 AM

Vice-Chair Mcciche asked whether the departnent had
considered not |abeling collected data as specifically for
"sport"” or "conmercial" fisheries.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 18 02/ 25/ 15 9:10 A M



Comm ssioner Cotten agreed that much of the stock
assessnment along the Kenai River affected both sport and
commercial fisheries. He said that separate analysis could
be done.

10: 27: 44 AM

Senator Dunleavy agreed wth Senator Hoffrman that the
departnent perfornmed a constitutionally nmandated function.
He opined that deep cuts to the departnent's budget were
i nevi tabl e.

10: 29: 01 AM

Senat or O son comented that catch and rel ease was contrary
to the practices of people in his districts. He noted that
his constituency regarded this practice as a waste of
noney. He understood that people traveled to Alaska to fish
recreationally, but that the state could no |onger afford
for people to play with the resource.

10: 30: 23 AM
AT EASE

10: 31: 38 AM
RECONVENED

AOVERVI EW FY 16 DEPARTMENT OF PUBLI C SAFETY

10: 31: 52 AM

KELLY  HOWELL, Dl RECTOR, DIVISION OF ADM NI STRATI VE
SERVI CES, DEPARTMENT OF PUBLI C SAFETY, presented Slide 5 of
t he budget overview, which offered a high-level overview of
the FY2015 Managenent Plan versus the FY2016 Governor's
Amended budget, and the difference between the two. She
said that the net reduction for the departnment was a 3.5
percent reduction from FY2015 Managenent Plan and a 2.35
percent decrease in UG. She noted the net reduction of 24
permanent full-tinme positions, which was offset by an
i ncrenent request for 8 new positions. She said that he 24
positions represented 28 conm ssion trooper positions that
woul d be shifted into vacant trooper patrol positions. She
rel ayed that there were 4 civilian positions.

10: 33: 32 AM

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 19 02/ 25/ 15 9:10 A M



Co- Chair MacKi nnon asked how many of the planned position
reductions were filled.

Ms. Howell believed that seven of the positions were
vacant .

10: 34: 03 AM

Ms. Howell noved to Slide 6, "FY2016 Operating Budget By
Fund Source,"” She stated that, at 84 percent, the majority
of the departnent's budget was conprised of UGF

10:34:17 AM

Ms. Howell continued to Slide 7,"FY2016 Operating Budget By
Line Item" which reflected that the mgjority of the
departnent's budget was Personal Services at 57 percent.

10: 34: 37 AM

Ms. Howell turned to Slide 8, "FY2016 Operating Budget By
Component ," which was a chart illustrating the Al aska State
Troopers represented the majority of the DPS budget.

10: 35: 05 AM

Ms. Howell noved to Slide 9, which summarized significant
operating changes, or the difference between what was
included in the FY 16 Work In Progress budget:

*Restructure of Aircraft Section: $2,374.1 G-
eTransfer from Governor’'s Ofice for CDVSA Prograns:
$1,500.0 G-

*Shelter Services for Wwnen and Children: $367.2 G-
*Reduce the Alaska Bureau of H ghway Patrol:
$(1,688.9) G-/ $(1,274.5) CIP Receipts

eDelete 4 LTNP State Trooper Cold Case I|nvestigators:
$(383.0) G-

*Delete 2 LTNP State Trooper Background | nvesti gators:
$(150.3) G-

*Del ete 5 VPSO Support Troopers: $(964.4) GF

*Del ete 3 DVSA Fol | ow Up Troopers: $(443.8) G-

Wt hdraw FY16 |ncrenent Request for Two Troopers for
t he Kenai Peninsula: $(310.0) G-

Ms. Howell explained when |ooking for reductions in DPS
budget, the mssion of ensuring public safety and

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 20 02/ 25/ 15 9:10 A M



protecting core services was a priority. She said that core
services included basic police services: enforcenent of
| aws, patrol functions, and responding to «calls for
service, which included the enforcement of fish and
wildlife laws through the Al aska WIldlife Troopers.
Forensic science services, provided to I|aw enforcenent

agenci es acr oss t he state, wer e al so pr ot ect ed.
Additionally, illegal drug and al cohol interdictions, major
crime investigations and investigative assistance provided
to all law enforcenent agencies across the state, the

Division of Fire Safety, and services for those who had
been inpacted by domestic violence and sexual assault were
all priority core services.

10: 36: 31 AM

Co- Chair MacKi nnon asked about the first bullet point on
the slide. She requested an explanation for the cost
i ncrease.

Ms. Howel | explained that the FY 16 budget request included
8 new permanent, full-time, civilian positions. She shared
that the request stenmed from recomendati ons and fi ndings
of the National Transportation Safety Board (NTSB) and
i ndependent auditors as a result of the HELO 1 crash that
occurred in March of 2013.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon further probed the bullet point.

GARY FOLGER, COW SSI ONER, DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY,
responded that 14 positions were recomended to the
departnment, which were scaled back to 8 He furthered that
the recommendations and outside audit were in the interest
of safety.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon requested a copy of the recommendations
and why they were nade.

Comm ssioner Folger replied that there were nunerous
recommendations made and that he would provide the
information to the conmttee at a |ater date.

10: 39: 46 AM

Senator Hoffman queried the inpact to the programif the 8
positions were not funded. He referenced the 6th bullet

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 21 02/ 25/ 15 9:10 A M



point on the slide and asked by there were no funds
attached to the deletion of the Pilot 2 position.

Senator O son interjected that having reviewed the NTSB
report he believed that the crash was due to an invasive
culture of a lack of respect for safety training. He
asserted that DPS enpl oyees were |law enforcenment officers
first and pilots second.

10:42: 38 AM

Comm ssioner Folger replied that if the request was not
honored the departnment would be forced to ground its nore
val uabl e and conplex, larger aircraft.

Senator Hof fman asked whether the departnment had eval uated
how effective progranms were that had been operational for a
short tine.

Comm ssioner Folger offered an anecdotal scenario. He
relayed that aircraft, to Troopers, was a valuable asset
and lifesaving tool. He recognized that the budget cuts had
to come from sonmewhere in the budget.

10: 44: 20 AM

Senator Dunl eavy asked whether it was a recomendation or
an absolute mandate that the 8 positions be fill ed.

Comm ssi oner Folger replied that it was a recommendati on.
Senator Dunleavy contended that the federal governnent
could print as nuch noney as it wanted to, but Alaska did
not currently have the luxury of taking on recommendations
fromthe federal governnment.

10: 44: 48 AM

Vice-Chair Mcciche asked whether the Cold Case program
woul d be elimnated entirely.

Comm ssioner Folger answered yes, as a cost savings
neasur e.

Vi ce-Chair M cci che under st ood t hat t he Col d Case

i nvestigators had been involved in cases that were of high
val ue to the departnent.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 22 02/ 25/ 15 9:10 A M



Comm ssi oner Folger replied in the affirmative.

Vice-Chair Mcciche asked whether the departnent had
considered contracting out to private investigating firns.

Comm ssioner Folger retorted that private contracts had not
been considered because they would be of an additional
expense.

10:45:46 AM

Senator Dunleavy asked if the department required its
pilots to undergo Medallion training.

Comm ssi oner Folger responded that the training was not
required but that once a nonth a safety neeting was held at
which a Medallion representative was present. He furthered
that once a year an aviation safety sem nar was held where
pilots could train on flight sinulators.

10: 46: 38 AM
AT EASE

10: 46: 50 AM
RECONVENE

Senat or Hof fran spoke to the $1.5 nillion partial
restoration of the Choose Respect Initiative. He said that
the state was | ooking to nove the program from a governor's
initiative to departnent's budget as an expansion of
Council on Donestic Violence and Sexual Assault (CDVSA). He
requested a justification for the reconmendati on.

Comm ssi oner Folger noted that the initiative had not been
fully funded but that DPS had received partial funding; he
believed that the change was intended facilitate the
program "stepping-down" while services within the program
were scrutinized for cuts.

Senat or Hof f man wondered what the intended tinme franme was,
in fiscal years, for the stepping down of the program and
whether the $1.5 mllion would be conpletely elimnated
from future budget requests.

Comm ssioner Folger replied that it was uncertain what
woul d happen into the future.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 23 02/ 25/ 15 9:10 A M



10: 48: 55 AM

Vice-Chair Mcciche asked whether the cuts the departnent
had nmade would put people at additional risk. He worried
about the departnent's ability to deliver constitutional
essenti al services and wonder ed whet her t he cuts
conprom sed those servi ces.

Comm ssi oner Fol ger echoed the concerns. He believed that
energency response could be delayed in sonme instances. He
opined that the repercussions of the budget cuts were an
unknown.

10: 50: 14 AM

Senator d son wondered effect the cuts would have on the
Village Police Safety Oficer (VPSO program

Comm ssioner Folger stated that the departnent hoped to
exam ne indirect costs and retain positions.

Senator O son queried the nunber accidents that had
occurred in the past two years and whether any additiona
safety nmeasures had been taken to ensure agai nst accidents.
Comm ssi oner Fol ger stated that nost of the accidents that
had occurred in the past two years were training accidents
i nvol vi ng younger troopers training to be pilots.

Senator O son clarified that there had been two training
acci dents.

Conmi ssi oner Folger replied that he believed so.

10: 52:15 AM

Senator Hof frman said that he had understood that there had
been an agreenent that the P/V Stinmson would be kept at
Dutch Harbor. He said that the transfer of the vessel's
base of operations from Dutch Harbor to Kodiak was a breach
of the agreement that had been made with the legislature in
t he past.

Ms. Howell relayed that additional commttee questions that

had been submtted to the departnment would be answered in
writing.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 24 02/ 25/ 15 9:10 A M



#
ADJ QURNVENT
10: 53: 38 AM

The neeting was adjourned at 10:53 a.m

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 25 02/ 25/ 15 9:10 A M



